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1.  CORPORATE INFORMATION NAEHR
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. RRA 2 EBEBREEER-REARN K
During the year, the Group was involved in the distribution SERFEMEGRDGER D HERE
of computer hardware and software products and the HERBMWEBF 2 EZH MAEESEE
provision of computer technology services. Details of the M ARz EXEBEFIEEHN B mEM
principal activities of the Group’s principal subsidiaries are HI5 REBZEZEBKHERFARE
set out in note 15 to the financial statements. There were no ERABEBRRILWEERES-
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year and up to the date of this report.

2. IMPACT OF A REVISED HONG KONG RETEBEHEREN S

STATEMENT OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING
PRACTICE

The revised Hong Kong Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice (“SSAP”) 12 “Income taxes” is effective for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements. SSAP 12
prescribes the accounting for income taxes payable or
recoverable, arising from the taxable profit or loss for the
current period (current tax); and income taxes payable or
recoverable in future periods, principally arising from taxable
and deductible temporary differences and the carryforward
of unused tax losses (deferred tax).

The principal impact of the revision of this SSAP 12 on these
financial statements is described below:

Measurement and recognition

Deferred tax assets and liabilities relating to the differences
between capital allowances for tax purposes and depreciation
for financial reporting purposes and other taxable and
deductible temporary differences are fully provided for,
whereas previously the deferred tax was recognised for timing
differences only to the extent that it was probable that the
deferred tax asset or liability would crystallise in the

foreseeable future.

The adoption of SSAP 12 had no significant impact for the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2002

on the amounts recorded for income taxes.
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IMPACT OF REVISED HONG KONG STATEMENT
OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE (continued)

Disclosures

The related note disclosures of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are now more extensive than previously required.
These disclosures are presented in note 10 to the financial
statements and include a reconciliation between the

accounting loss and the tax income for the year.

Further details of these changes are included in the accounting
policy for deferred tax in notes 3 and 10 to the financial

statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Statements of Standard Accounting Practice,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the periodic remeasurement of certain

fixed assets, as further explained below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2003. The results of the subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are consolidated from
or to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal,
respectively. All significant intercompany transactions and

balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the results and net assets of the Company’s

subsidiaries.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FESHHERE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Subsidiaries M B AR

A subsidiary is a company whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to

obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit
and loss account to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated

at cost less any impairment losses.

The gain or loss on disposal of a subsidiary represents the
difference between the proceeds of the sale and the Group’s
share of its net assets together with any goodwill relating to
the subsidiary which was not previously charged or recognised

in the consolidated profit and loss account.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's
share of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities

acquired as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset and amortised on the
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of a maximum

period of 10 years.

Prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 “Business combination” in
2001, goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against
consolidated reserves in the year of acquisition. On the
adoption of SSAP 30, the Group applied the transitional
provision of the SSAP that permitted such goodwill to remain
eliminated against consolidated reserves. Goodwill on
acquisitions subsequent to the adoption of the SSAP is treated

according to the SSAP 30 goodwill accounting policy above.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of subsidiaries, the gain or loss on disposal is
calculated by reference to the net assets at the date of
disposal, including the attributable amount of goodwill which
remains unamortised and any relevant reserves, as appropriate.
Any attributable goodwill previously eliminated against
consolidated reserves at the time of acquisition is written
back and included in the calculation of the gain or loss on

disposal.

The carrying amount of goodwill, including goodwill remaining
eliminated against consolidated reserves, is reviewed annually
and written down for impairment when it is considered
necessary. A previously recognised impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed unless the impairment loss was caused
by a specific external event of an exceptional nature that
was not expected to recur, and subsequent external events

have occurred which have reversed the effect of that event.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered
to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence. Related parties may be

individuals or corporate entities.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FESHHERE (B
POLICIES (continued)
Fixed assets and depreciation EEEERITE

Fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated

depreciation and any impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after fixed assets have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the profit
and loss account in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed
asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of

that asset.

Changes in the values of fixed assets are dealt with as
movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total of
this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the profit
and loss account. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to the profit and loss account to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset,
the relevant portion of the revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits

as a movement in reserves.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost or valuation of each asset over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose

are as follows:

Medium term leasehold land Over the remaining lease terms
Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 33'5% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures 33'5%
and equipment

Motor vehicles 33'5%

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed asset
recognised in the profit and loss account is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of

the relevant asset.

Leased assets

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases are included in fixed assets and are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged
to the profit and loss account so as to provide a constant

periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the profit
and loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
the operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account

on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Long term investments

Long term investments in listed and unlisted equity securities,
intended to be held on a continuing strategic or long-term
basis, are stated at cost less any impairment losses, on an

individual investment basis.

When a decline in the fair value of a security below its carrying
amount has occurred, unless there is evidence that the decline
is temporary, the carrying amount of the security is reduced
to its fair value, as estimated by the directors. The amount of
the impairment is charged to the profit and loss account for
the period in which it arises. When the circumstances and
events which led to the impairment in value cease to exist
and there is persuasive evidence that the new circumstances
and events will persist for the foreseeable future, the amount
of the impairment previously charged is credited to the profit
and loss account to the extent of the amount previously

charged.

The gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
such securities are credited or charged to the profit and loss

account in the period in which they arise.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of whether
there is any indication of impairment of any asset, or whether
there is any indication that an impairment loss previously
recognised for an asset in prior years may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is calculated as the higher of the asset’s value in use

and its net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is charged to the profit and loss account in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, when the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that

revalued asset.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of an asset, however not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the
profit and loss account in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with

the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING TESTBERBE ()
POLICIES (continued)
Research and development costs 9% & B B A A

All research costs are charged to the profit and loss account

as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the projects are clearly
defined; the expenditure is separately identifiable and can be
measured reliably; there is reasonable certainty that the
projects are technically feasible; and the products have
commercial value. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses and are
amortised using the straight-line basis over the commercial
lives of the underlying products not exceeding three years,
commencing from the date when the products are available

for use.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion

of overheads. Net realisable value is based on the estimated
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selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to FTHE-
completion and disposal.
Accounts receivable PE W AR 1E

The payment terms granted by the Group vary from project
to project and may include cash on delivery, advance payment
and credit of 30 to 90 days from different stages of the
projects. Trade receivables are recognised and carried at
original invoiced amount less provisions for doubtful debts
which are recorded when collection of the amount is no

longer probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand

and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including

term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can

be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is included in

finance costs in the profit and loss account.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the profit and loss account or in equity if it
relates to items that are recognised in the same or a different

period, directly in equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all

FESHHERE (®)
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temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the ERARMGRBcEHEEECHMAY
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts REE NEAEBBEXRELES

for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary

differences:

o except where the deferred tax liability arises from
goodwill or the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business

combination and, at the time of the transaction,
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affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit Hhi &
or loss; and
. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated . BB AR 2 EmAE R 2 FEART

with interests in subsidiaries, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax assets and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax assets and

unused tax losses can be utilised:

o except where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit

nor taxable profit or loss; and
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHERE (®)
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued) Frig® (48)

. in respect of deductible temporary differences J BB AR RS ATIREEARE
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates E R EB 2 TR R =
and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are B-REREEEL]ERRR
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that 1% & BBl J e AR B s RS T 8
the temporary differences will reverse in the i E R RERIEEET TR

foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at REEEREENSEAZEAERN TR
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is AIREND B B S PE R Bm MK ST A S E o
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be BT TR E ER R D o M8 5 A R TR
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be IRETITAE E NG B 5 R AR T s A 8
utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax Fra k& o IR EFi 18 & B R iR o

assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part

of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax RIERIBEEERBEDRNEE B BEMK
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset BEBEMoME (RBEE)HE MBEBH
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and KA ATEHARN S IR E E OB EE S R E
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at Rz &

the balance sheet date.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHEX#ME @
POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits EEEF
Paid leave carried forward EEEFERA

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as
at the balance sheet date is permitted to be carried forward
and utilised by the respective employees in the following
year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet date for the
expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the

year by the employees and carried forward.

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the required
number of years of service to the Group in order to be eligible
for long service payments under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance in the event of the termination of their
employment. The Group is liable to make such payments in
the event that such a termination of employment meets the
circumstances specified in the Hong Kong Employment

Ordinance.

A contingent liability is disclosed in respect of possible future
long service payments to employees, as a number of current
employees have achieved the required number of years of
service to the Group up to the balance sheet date, in order
to be eligible for long service payments under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance if their employment is terminated in
the circumstances specified. A provision has not been
recognised in respect of such possible payments, as it is not
considered probable that the situation will result in a material

future outflow of resources from the Group.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations. The
financial impact of share options granted under the share
option scheme is not recorded in the Company’s or the
Group’s balance sheet until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recorded in the profit and loss
account or balance sheet for their cost. Upon the exercise of
share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by the
Company as additional share capital at the nominal value of
the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the
Company in the share premium account. Options which are
cancelled prior to their exercise date, or which lapse, are

deleted from the register of outstanding options.

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
participating employees’ relevant income and are charged to
the profit and loss account as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed

into the Scheme.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHERE (®)

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

The Group has joined a mandatory central pension scheme
operated by the PRC government for its PRC employees, the
assets of which are held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions made are based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries and are charged to the profit and loss
account as they become payable, in accordance with the
rules of the scheme. The employer contributions vest fully

once they are made.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over

the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, including fixed price
service contracts, based on the stage of completion
of the transaction, provided that this and the costs
incurred, as well as the estimated costs to completion
can be measured reliably. The stage of completion of
a transaction associated with the rendering of such
services is established by reference to the costs
incurred to date as compared to the total costs to be

incurred under the transaction;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) maintenance income, on a time proportion basis over

the period of the contract;

(d) interest income, on a time proportion basis taking
into account the principal outstanding and the

effective interest rate applicable; and

(e) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.
Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the capital and
reserves section of the balance sheet, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and

declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they

are proposed and declared.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESHHERE (B
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies ShE

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable NANNERT 2R G DR S A 2 EAE
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary FME-RNBEERUNINBEEE BB EE
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the FaGEhmrzBzEaREXRE- BN E
balance sheet date are translated at the applicable exchange BHBABRREE-

rates ruling at that date. Exchange differences are dealt with

in the profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas REEERE R BINGTE QR 2 B %@mEK
subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the RFREAEMRERBIL - BINNBARZ
net investment method. The profit and loss accounts of BRERRFRNZMEFTHEERBRE BE
overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars T EAEBBERAREEBZEZRER
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year, and BT ALMEECZHEZEREREEER
their balance sheets are translated to Hong Kong dollars at B A

the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The

resulting translation differences are included in the exchange

fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the RiEGERESRERAN BINTEBAF 2R
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong ERERREREAHCEXZRERE
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the T FRNEIINNBRARZEFTHRESRER
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas FAMBETHEXRBRA /BT

subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange

rates for the year.
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4. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2002, the Group
discontinued its business involving the provision of broadband
Internet equipment, network security software and business
software systems, following the disposal of DMX Technologies
Group Limited ("DMX") and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“DMX Group”). The DMX Group was consolidated by the
Group until the date of its disposal, at which time the assets
and liabilities of the DMX Group were transferred to the loss
on disposal of the discontinued operations, which comprised

the following:
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RBE-_ZZ-_F+_A=+—-HIF
[Z - AN B % H & DMX Technologies Group
Limited ( [DMX]) ) R E K B2 A (57
[DMXEE H | ) 12 - 42 11 72 {1 % 48 5 B 4958
B BERLEGLBAELRTRARES-
DMXEEZEREBMILZ REGAF AR
SEZEEN MOMXEBEER 2 EER
EEHEERHECREEBER Eha
BT EIE:

2003 2002
—EB=HF —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#T T
Consideration received/receivable HEHEDMXEBE BB Z
in relation to the disposal of the RAE (M7E215%31()
DMX Group (notes 21 and 31(c)) - 50,000
Less: Net assets of the DMX Group  J# ‘DMX%EE & &E FE - (68,907)
Legal and professional expenses  HEELZEZEREXEH
incurred on disposal - (1,025)
Goodwill (GRS - (99,377)
Loss on disposal of the DMX Group & DMX& & & 18 - (119,309)

Note:  Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 3 October
2002 (the "Agreement”), the Group disposed of all of its
equity interest in (equivalent to 61% of the issued ordinary
shares of) DMX to seven purchasers of which two were the
then minority shareholders of DMX, for a consideration of
HK$50 million.

Wit WREAHA-ZT-_F+A=ZAZEER
& ((H#]) AEEREtEEFHE
HERDMXZ P& Ik #E (488 R DMXE &

TEmAR61%) X {8 /550,000,000
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

The effective date of discontinuance of the discontinued
operations was 15 October 2002. The turnover and other
income generated from the discontinued operations for the
year ended 31 December 2002 were HK$155,084,000 and
HK$627,000 respectively. The operating profit before tax
arising from the discontinued operations for that year was
HK$19,446,000, which included costs of inventories sold of
HK$111,011,000, finance costs of HK$306,000 and operating
expenses of HK$25,254,000.

There were no material assets and liabilities relating to the
discontinued operations included in the Group’s consolidated

balance sheets as at 31 December 2002 and 2003.

On 6 September 2002, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) rejected the application of
the Group in respect of compliance with Rule 8.05 of the
Listing Rules in relation to the proposed spin-off of the DMX
Group. The directors expected that, if the DMX Group did
not obtain a listing and remained a subsidiary of the Group,

both the DMX Group and the Group would suffer considerably

ERIEER @)

FHERIIER s EBMBHA-_ST-F
+A+EB-BHE-_ZEE_F+_-_A=+
—ALFE EEACRIEER 2AES
K E AU A 9 Bl A& 155,084,000/ 7T &
627,000 L - ZFEEFBRRIEXEB 2
W i AT AS 205 F 519,446,000/ T BLIEE
HEFERA111,011,00008 7T B E AR
306,000/ 7T f& £ & # F325,254,000% 7T °

RZBEE-FR_TTE=F+=-_A=+—
A AEBGEEERBRA WES AR
BERIIEBEBrEREERAE.

RIBEZ-_FAARE BEBARZHM
BROF ([HRF]) EBAEERER
DMXEE[E 2 #f L M & I8 £ AR A15£8.05
WGRIBH 2 R -EFRIEH - WDMXEE K B
ErmmiEAAEE 2 ERR DMXE
ERAREETERIERTE RER: ()
MZEINE S X EDMXEB L L KR

because of (i) the lack of additional funding to support the R(NEEEDMXERERESEAERES
operation and growth of the DMX Group; and (ii) the loss of IRk - BEZRE BEAEEREEEL

qualified staff based on the directors’ understanding from
the management of the DMX Group. The directors considered
that it was the best interests of the Group to dispose of the
DMX Group, although this resulted in the Group incurring a

loss on the disposal of HK$119 million.

Under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, the Agreement
constituted a disclosable transaction for the Company. Further
details of the Agreement are set out in an announcement of
the Company dated 8 October 2002 and a circular of the
Company dated 29 October 2002.

E518 119,000,000/ 7T i EDMXEE A
KEBZ HEF -

RIEFETRAUNBEUE HEBKARRZ
ATHRERXS BHBHEIE - FFHIBEHR
RARRBHMARA—TZ—F+AN\H
R—ZZ_F+A-_ThBzahkB
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business
segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by

geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and
the products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
business segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business
segments. Summary details of the business segments are as

follows:

(a) the banking and finance systems integration services
segment engages in the provision of system
integration, software development, engineering,
maintenance and professional outsourcing services
customised for banking and finance,

telecommunications and public sector clients;

(b) the software solutions for banks and public sector
segment concentrates on the banking, e-commerce
and public sectors with a business focus on e-business

operations and online marketplaces; and

(c) the broadband Internet equipments, network security
software and business software systems segment
specialised in Internet Protocol networking, Internet
security and web-based television solutions. The
activities of this segment were discontinued during

the year ended 31 December 2002 (note 4).

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues
are attributed to the segments based on the location of the
customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based

on the location of the assets.
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5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 2EERM@
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference DEENEENEENIRER I MER
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at EEREEFE = IIEEEET
the then prevailing market prices.
(a) Business segments (a) XK
The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and REBEBH I 2 WA T, (B
certain asset, liability and expenditure information for BREFEE ABEREYZER
the Group’s business segments. BN Tk
Group N EE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BENERH BRLER

Broadband Internet
equipment, network
Software solutions  security software
Banking and for banks and and business
finance systems the public sector  software systems
integration services ~ HTRAREE ERERERE
ROREHESR REERZBH BERRAMLR Eliminations Consolidated
SHBRB BARE EEEGEY H# &8
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
SRRk T F CRRCE ISR CRRCE ST S CRRSE ST F_RRcE 274
HKS'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HKS'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HKS'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000

FEL| FAT| FAr| FEr| TEr| FEn| FEr| FAr| TEr| TEx

Seqment revenue: AHYA:

Sales to external ANBEE 11,412 | 84,269 | 150,280 | 104,515 - | 155,084 - - | 261,692 | 343,868

customers fE 7z BE

Intersegment sales AHEHE - - 9%0 | 1,09 - - (960)]  (1,095) - -

Interest income FISHA 521 7% 35 449 - a0 - - 55 | 1,667

Other income A 440 261 7 - - 205 - - a7 466

Total ik 112,373 | 85326 | 151,282 | 106,059 - | 155,711 (960)]  (1,095)| 262,695 | 346,001
Seqment results AP%E (4513)] (11,66) 3427 | (2,259) - | 19,446 - - | (1.08) 5921
Unallocated interest AAETIE

income /9N 704 443
Unallocated gains AAENE 8 583
Unallocated expenses AR T (14,709)| (21,524)
Loss on disposal of HEBE LR

discontinued operations &1 (119,309) - | (119,309)
Loss from operating ~ MEEHL

activities EE (15,009)| (133,886
Finance costs BERL (125)]  (1,294)
Loss before tax BRAEE (15,734)| (135,180)
Tax it 1974 | (4,065)
Loss before minority ~ FzF D ERE

interests ExilSE (13,760)| (139,245
Minority interests SERR R (1622)] (8,624)
Net loss from ordinary ~ RREGEE

activities ZBEEE

attributable to

shareholders (15,382)[ (147,869
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5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 2EER@
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) X oH (&)
Group rEE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
REGEEH BRLER

Broadband Internet
equipment, network
Software solutions  security software
Banking and for banks and and business
finance systems the public sector  software systems
integration services  BTRABZH ERERERE
LR e ES REERZEH BERZEAR Eliminations Consolidated
ERRE BARE EEES i &4
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Z8cE CTRCFCRRCE ST FCQRCE CTT-FCRR-F TR F RS TR
HK$'000 | HK$'000 [ HKS'000 | HKS'000 [ HKS'000 | HK$'000 [ HKS'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000
TAn | TEn| TEx| TAx| TEx| TEn| ThAn| TEn| TEr| TEn

Segment assets THEE 228964 | 243,844 | 134248 | 90,816 - - | (106,321)] (120,512)] 256,891 | 214,148
Unallocated assets: AAREE:

Long term investment & H & 66,681 | 51,081

Others i 47,704 | 57215
Bank overdrafts included Zif A BEE

in seqment assets BB - 592 - - - - - - - 592
Total assets BELE 371,276 | 323,036
Seqment liabilties PHERE (146,357)| 171,172 | (99,457)| 52,287 - - | 106,321 | (120,512)] (139,493 102,947
Unallocated liabilities ~ #AEAE (67,079)] 41,046
Bank overdrafts included AR BAE

in segment assets LBEX - 592 - - - - - - - 592
Total liabilities BELE (206,572)| 144,585
Other segment Hhpdas:

information:
Cash and bank BHAR AR

balances included LRERER

in segment assets £4 43,880 | 45866 | 40975 | 14,023 - - - - | 84,855 | 59,889
Pledged time BHASBEE

deposits included LEEAES

in segment assets e 2,929 2,913 10,541 12,481 - - - - 13,470 15,394
Depreciation and TEREH

amortisation 2,082 (4661) 1,097 (3,003) - (7.333) - - 3179 | (14,997)

Unallocated amounts A E4SE

=3
>
o
[=3
>
<@

4,048 | (16,060)

Provision for doubtful ~ REEE

debts 6,387 (2992)] 1,305 (24) - - - - 8,192 (3,016)
Other non-cash EESET 0N
income/(expenses) / (B%) 12 (99) (38) 18 - 8) - - (26) (89)
Unallocated amounts A E4SE 294 (70)
268 (159)
Capital expenditure EREX 1884 1,032 138 558 - 863 - -2 2483
Unallocated amounts A7 E4H 20 1332

2,302 3,785
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5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 28&ER®
(b) Geographical segments (b) ih & 2 5B
The following tables present revenue and certain asset AEEMES B2 WARETEE
and expenditure information for the Group's HAZ 2 EMIINTER

geographical segments.

Group rEHE
Asia Pacific
Hong Kong Elsewhere in the PRC  other than the PRC Eliminations Consolidated
E# TEABBE  DAME(RERN g &4

2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2000 2003 2002
CEECE CTTCF CBECE T CF CBECE CTTCFCBECECTTCFCBEZECTTC
HKS'000 | HK$'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HK$'000
Tér| Fén| Thrn| Fhrn | TAn| Fhrn | Térn| Férn| Térn| Firn

Seqment revenue: AHHA:
Sales to external mIPER
customers ez 8 237 | 12,838 | 261,455 | 307,094 - 23936 - - | 261,692 | 343,868
Other segment EtpHEH:
information:
Segment assets PHEE 584,855 | 644,214 | 254,064 | 194,241 - - | (534,324)] (567,092)| 304,595 | 271,363
Unallocated amounts: & AE£%:
Long term investment R HZE 66,681 | 51,081
Bank overdrafts BHASY
included in BEBA
segment assefs i - 592 - - - - - - - 592

371,276 | 323,036

Cash and bank balances Bif AR HBEE
included in segment  ZHE R
assets Rde 6,985 3,460 | 84,848 | 56,770 - - - - 91,833 60,230

Pledged time deposits 2 A BEE
included in segment  ZEAATH
assets B3 3,000 | 19,884 | 13,470 [ 10,541 - - - - | 16470 | 30,425

Capital expenditure BERX 20 2386 | 202 139 - - - -1 230 3785
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6. TURNOVER AND INCOME 6. EXFERW=E
Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, EHTECEEM EZFE (BEMKRE
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, and the ERESIM) BATREREERFE
value of services rendered. All significant intra-Group AEEBTERAABMZ—EARZER
transactions have been eliminated on consolidation. el B RIEE-
An analysis of turnover and income is as follows: EERERE DTN T:
Group
rEHE
2003 2002
—EB=F —ETCF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TF¥ET TF¥ET
Continuing operations: R T
Sale of goods HEE M 223,915 111,016
Provision of computer RHE
technology services By AR 7% 37,777 77,768
261,692 188,784
Discontinued operations: AL
Sale of goods HESm - 155,082
Provision of computer RHEM
technology services BT AR 7 - 2
- 155,084
Total turnover BEME 261,692 343,868
Interest income FEMA 1,260 2,110
Gross rental income e @A 32 533
Sundry income HMEUHA 497 516
Other income H i A 1,789 3,159
263,481 347,027
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7. LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 7. REEK BB

AEBRKEEB 2 BROME (GHA)

The Group’s loss from operating activities is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

2003 2002
—EEZ=F —ETCF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt F#E o FET
Costs of inventories sold and BEHERFE RATIEMH
services provided AR 7% 2 Bk 2N 225,408 261,433
Depreciation e 13 3,678 7,120
Amortisation of goodwill GRS ] 16 - 6,174
Provision for doubtful debts RAREE 8,192 3,016
Research and development costs: 5 N B B Bl AN
Amortisation of deferred 8 9 3 R B R AR
development costs 14 370 2,766
Minimum lease payments THEEBFEEHEE
under operating leases ZHEMEE
in respect of land and buildings 3,586 5,846
Auditors’ remuneration ZERAD B & 1,500 948
Staff costs, excluding directors’ BT A (TBE
remuneration (note 8): E2E2Me) (M8
Salaries e 26,699 54,204
Pension scheme contributions RSB 3,499 3,618
Mandatory provident fund oF 1 A FE & R
contributions 129 825
30,327 58,647
Exchange loss/(gain), net &N EE S (BF) FE (12) 400
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMWEARERE - 119,363
Loss/(gain) on disposal of PEEEEERBE
fixed assets, net (BF) F5 (268) 159
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LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (continued)

The cost of inventories sold and services provided for the
year ended 31 December 2003 included HK$13,289,000
(2002: HK$19,350,000), relating to direct staff costs and the
amortisation of deferred development costs, which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately
above for each of these types of expenses for the year.

The amortisation of goodwill and provision for doubtful debts
for the year are included in “Other operating expenses” on

the face of the consolidated profit and loss account.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of the Company’'s directors disclosed

7.
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BE_ZZ=F+-_A=+—HLLFEZ
EHEFERMEHRB ZKNAE BIER
BEEBIRARRIERRERASEHEEEZ
13,289,000/ 7T (—ZZ&ZF —~ 4 :19,350,000
BL) BEBEDRFALXSBIRER
FEEHRMAX 2@E -

AEEEHEHEIRERECDTAREGE
mRZ[EMEEER P

EERLEBRSFEENSE

BRELETRAEEERAGIE161ER

pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong BeARARREEHEOT:
Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
Group
KEME
2003 2002
ZEZ=HF —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees: w
Executive directors WITES - -
Non-executive directors FNITES 50 200
Independent non-executive BUEMITES
directors 396 400
446 600
Other emoluments of BWITESCHEME:
executive directors:
Basic salaries, other allowances EXEFe EMZMREYMNZ
and benefits in kind 6,428 6,108
Mandatory provident fund BEIEABR MR
contributions 36 73
6,464 6,181
6,910 6,781
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8. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE 8. EERTERSHFEEMS (&
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

The number of directors whose remuneration fell within the MeEBR THHE CEEABUDT:

following bands is as follows:

Number of directors

EEAH
2003 2002
—EE=F —ET_F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 7L £ 1,000,0007% 7T 6 6
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T & 3,000,000/ 7T 1 1
8 8
The five highest paid employees included three (2002: three) RERN AEGaHEERE=%(ZZZT
directors during the year, details of whose remuneration are TEZH)EE BEZMEBEEHN L
set out above. X e
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2002: two) BERFEEFRTREA(ZTETE_F: M
non-director, highest paid employees are as follows: Z)FEEREZMEFEHOT:
2003 2002
—EE=F —EEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T TET
Basic salaries, other allowances EXFe EMEMREDHEG
and benefits in kind 952 1,740
Mandatory provident fund BHEATESER
contributions 12 12
964 1,752
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

The remuneration of each of the non-director, highest paid
employees for the year ended 31 December 2003 fell within
the Nil to HK$1,000,000 band.

During the year, aggregate of 15,000,000 (2002: 11,400,000)
and 1,500,000 (2002: 1,000,000) share options with an
exercise price of HK$0.233 (2002: HK$0.431) per share were
granted to three executive directors and the two non-director,
highest paid employees, respectively, in respect of their
services to the Group, further details of which are set out in
note 29 to the financial statements. No value in respect of
the share options granted during the year has been charged
to the consolidated profit and loss account.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2002:
Nil). During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors or the non-director, highest paid employees
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office (2002: Nil).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group
had no significant obligations for long service payments to
its employees pursuant to the relevant requirements of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance at 31 December 2003.
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EERLEERSHFEEMS (&

BE-_ZZE=F+_A=+—RHILtEE"
EHEEERFEEZHMENTTELE
1,000,000 JT °

£ R 4 815,000,0001) (Z BT — 4
11,400,000) 1,500,000/ (—ZZT —4:
1,000,000) MAT{EE A0.233F L (==
ZF 04318 ) ZERE D BIKE A
EERBEETFT=RNTEELMEERH
EEMIEEF -FAERFENTBRRM
H29 FARH ZEREZ EETELR
EBRERAR

FRAVEIUEMNESHRESIRERET
AN 2T (CETE_F 8) ALEER
FRANERAEFIIEFC EHFTEES
B EAEBEMAREB IR MA
REEE 2 RE) SMERREBB BB
(ZZZT=F:]|)-

RKAREEEGRA KEESERERBIENE
AR AEBRR -_ZEE=F+_F=+
—HHEREYEEAZEERESE
£

FINANCE COSTS Al E A
Group
rEH
2003 2002
i —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest on trust receipt loans and AR AFRNE2I[EE 2
bank overdrafts wholly FERBBEERRIRIT
repayable within five years BEXFE 665 1,190
Interest on finance leases BmEREF S 60 104
725 1,294
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10. TAX 10. B\

Group

rEE
2003 2002
—EE=F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Current: REE:

Hong Kong BB - 5,061
Elsewhere H b [ 1,764 1,530
Overprovision in prior year FEEBEREE (3,738) (2,526)
(1,974) 4,065

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided (2002: provided
at the rate of 16%) as the Group has no assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. The statutory tax rate
for Hong Kong profits tax is 17.5% (2002: 16%) on the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

IERAEBBEEERMARAT ("THEEUB"), a subsidiary
of the Company established in the PRC, is exempted from
PRC corporate income tax for three years starting from the
year ended 31 December 2001, and thereafter is eligible for
a 50% relief from income tax for the following three years
under the Income Tax Law of the PRC. The standard PRC
corporate income tax rate applicable to % i U8 is 15%. As
a result of the exemptions, 7t #E £ is exempted from the
paying of corporate income tax for the years ended 31
December 2001, 2002 and 2003, and will be subject to
corporate income tax at the rate of 7.5% for the three years
ending 31 December 2004, 2005 and 2006. For the years
ended 31 December 2002 and 2003, the statutory corporate
income tax rates applicable to the other subsidiaries
established and operating in the PRC range from 15% to
33%.

AAREENFALBERTBESERT G
A HEFERBTENSHIELERE (Z2F
TER16% TR EE) - BENER
ZHROEERERITS% (Z T —F:
16%) RFRNETBER ZEFTER G
) o B E At 3 [ P R X RR B s K 2 B 08
TIREAEERLEEBMEMR 2R E-
BREW 2 RITEN RERENGFE-

R IE R B ET 18 B A Bl - AN R AE AR B K S
ZHBARIL REREBEBRMAERLR
Al ([Egm]) BBRE=-S2—F+=A
—t+-HILEFERBRIT=FANEREHMP
B¥MEHR R - F R EER— ¥
FriSfi- LS BBEA 2 IZERBDERR
SHAE15% RIS % - S BB E
BT F T _FRZTTE=F
TZAZ+—BLEEFEHEREEMN D
E¥EH HERBE-_TTNF —TF
AFRZZBEERNF+A=+—HI=@
FEAERISHHEHNLEMBR &
BT FR-ZFT=FF+-_A=+—
AIEEE RPBERREE 2 Ei B
ARHEAEEREMERBENT15%E
33%-°
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10.

TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before tax
using the statutory rates for the countries in which the
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax credit
at the effective tax rates are as follows:

10.
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BE (#)

BARBREMBRATMERZFIEER
FHEZBRBAEBEERZHEE % HE
BREBRBREAEZRBESSRNT:

Group
rEH
2003 2002
—EB=F —ETC
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
Loss before tax R B A& 18 (15,734) (135,180)
Tax credit at the applicable ratesto R EBEBE R EEE A
losses in the countries concerned BEFGECBHERSR (2,703) (21,026)
Income not subject to tax BARBKA (615) (667)
Expenses not deductible for tax IR 5,829 27,935
Adjustment to opening unutilised AeBEmpLAEAME
tax losses resulting from increase BEBYEGELRAE
in tax rate (61) -
Decrease in unutilised tax losses AEENBRAAMENEE
carryforward due to ABARBEEBEER R D
deregistration of subsidiaries (857) -
Increase in unutilised tax losses 48 K B) A B IE B 18 45 N
carryforward 171 349
Tax charge at the Group’s effective EAEBEERH R E 2 H 18
rate X i 1,764 6,591
Adjustments in respect of current TERFARBBMMED 2 BAE
tax of previous year (3,738) (2,526)
Tax credit at the Group's BEREEERBX
effective rate FEZHEERES (1,974) 4,065

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$5,259,000 (2002: HK$4,067,000) that are available
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets
have not been recognised in respect of these losses as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making

for some time.

REENE B E £ IEE 185,259,000/ 7T
(ZZTZ —%:4,067,000/870) * Al 4K 85
EXBEBZARBEERBERN -ARE
—BRHEASESERZWNBAREEEIE"
BT EREHEBEERRIMNECHESR
Eo
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11. NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 11. BRREEBEZEBE2FEE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS
The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to REAQABBRE_ZEZE=F+_A=+—H
shareholders dealt with in the financial statements of the IFEZ2MBRRANEERERGEATEE
Company for the year ended 31 December 2003 was 2 FERAS1,141,0008 0 (Z T =
HK$51,141,000 (2002: HK$151,562,000) (note 30(b)). #:151,562,0007% 70) (FI&zE30(b)) °

12. LOSS PER SHARE 12. BREE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the net
loss from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders for
the year of HK$15,382,000 (2002: HK$147,869,000) and the
weighted average of 501,209,644 (2002: 445,291,710)

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share amounts for the years ended 31
December 2003 and 2002 have not been disclosed as the
share options outstanding during these years had an anti-

dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for these years.

The effects of the Company’s shares issuable for the
settlement of the additional consideration for the acquisitions
of certain subsidiaries, as further detailed in note 31(a)(ii) to
the financial statements have not been included in the
computation of diluted loss per share as the shares to be so
issued would be fairly priced and are assumed to be neither

dilutive nor anti-dilutive.

BREARNBEEBDBEAFERREGAE
7% 2 FE1815,382,0008 0 (ZTE =
%:147,869,000% 1) BERXN B #HITE B
B2 hniE 9 80501,209,6440% (ZTZ =
4F:445,291,710/%) s+ & -

HREBEE-_TT=FR_ZTT_F+_-A
S+ HALEFERRTEZEBRELEZS
FEZBREABBENRBESE
VTEREZSEFRE 2 ERBEEEER-

AR ESREERERRIL BT AR
WEETHEBAR ZEIINEMA T 3T
ARmBm 2o e (NP HBBERME
3a)inpratil) - AAZEER K TETZ
Bty 2 (B8 A IR AR A I M 5 =
R#EETE-
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13.  FIXED ASSETS

Group

13.

Medium term
leasehold land

and building Leasehold

Annual Report 2003 % $§

REE

Furniture,

fixtures and

Cost or valuation:
At beginning of year
Additions

82 Disposals/write-off

At 31 December 2003

Accumulated depreciation:
At beginning of year
Provided during the year

Disposals/write-off

At 31 December 2003

Net book value:
At 31 December 2003

At 31 December 2002

in Hong Kong improvements equipment Motor
REEZHH HE BR-#E vehicles Total
HETHRET MEEE &L AE “E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
650 4,000 23,597 4,501 32,748
- - 1,755 547 2,302
(650) - (879) (2,536) (4,065)
¥
+—H - 4,000 24,473 2,512 30,985
122 3,351 18,451 3,144 25,068
30 487 2,636 525 3,678
(152) - (739) (2,527) (3,418)
- 3,838 20,348 1,142 25,328
- 162 4,125 1,370 5,657
528 649 5,146 1,357 7,680

As at 31 December 2003, all fixed assets are stated at cost.

As at 31 December 2002, the Group's leasehold land and

building were stated at valuation.

R-ZBE=F+_A=+—H FEEE
BEUREEAN K.

RZZEE-_F+_A=+—H xEE
HEIHREFRHEBEAR.
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13. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

13. BEEEE &)
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Company KA T
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
improvements BR-£BE vehicles Total
HEMERE R&E "RE Foko)
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FET FET FET
Cost: B A A :
At beginning of year RE 1,627 1,023 2,376 5,026
Additions AE - - 280 280
Disposals HE - - (1,361) (1,361)
At 31 December 2003 RZTE=F
+=—A=+—8 1,627 1,023 1,295 3,945
Accumulated depreciation:  ZIEHE:
At beginning of year REH 1,330 771 1,464 3,565
Provided during the year FRBHE 230 216 424 870
Disposals HE - - (1,352) (1,352)
At 31 December 2003 RZTT=F
+=—A=+—H 1,560 987 536 3,083
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2003 RZTE=F
+=—A=+—8H 67 36 759 862
At 31 December 2002 RZTTZF
+=—A=+—8H 297 252 912 1,461

The net book value of the

fixed assets of the Company and

of the Group held under finance leases included in the total

amount of motor vehicles

at 31 December 2003 amounted

to HK$759,000 (2002: HK$912,000) respectively.

Had the Group’s leasehold

land and building been carried at

historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any

impairment losses, its carrying value would have been
approximately HK$600,000 as at 31 December 2002.

ARAFRAEERBEREREREZEE
EEZEEFE BER-_ZT=F1+=
RA=+—R#%E5 7ZF759,0008 7 (=%
T -4:912,000870) ZHHE-

AL E 2 HE - KRBT TIRE £ KA
MEBITEREMREBEAR LK@
BERZZZ-_F+ZR=+—8A#4A

600,000/% JT °
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14. DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS 14, BZEBBAL
Group rEH
HK$'000
FET
Cost: KARE
At beginning of year R E A 4,233
Additions NE 2,636
At 31 December 2003 RZTEZET=F+-_A=+—H 6,869
Accumulated amortisation: RE#EH:
At beginning of year R E A 4,233
84 Provided during the year FRNEE 370
At 31 December 2003 RZEE=F+=A=+—H 4,603
Net book value: FREFE:
At 31 December 2003 RZEE=F+=A=+—H 2,266

At 31 December 2002 RZETE-F+=-_A=+—H



Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERZEBERA T

Notes to Financial Statements

B % R OR MR

31 December 2003 —ZBE=%+=-A=+—H

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
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15. RMBELQR &S

Company
b NN |

2003 2002

—EE=HF —EEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Unlisted shares, at cost SEEMRG LK AE 39,631 39,631
Due from subsidiaries BB AR Z KA 331,013 338,724
Due to subsidiaries FETHT B AR 2 3B (2,140) (2,411)
368,504 375,944

Provision for impairment D RIER (265,382) (227,925)
103,122 148,019

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free

and have no fixed terms of repayment.

N AT ER R B R EEE
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31 December 2003

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15. RHEBATZ#EE (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWNBARIZFEWT:

86

Company

D F

Held directly:
BEERA:

Technology Venture

Investments Limited

Held indirectly:
BEZSEE

Light International

Holdings Limited

Sequent China/
Hong Kong Limited

Technology Venture
(Software) Holdings
Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
HEMmEL
ERUNE-E 31

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RERLHEE/BE

British Virgin Islands/PRC
KERIHE/H

Hong Kong/PRC
B/

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
KERLHSE /B

Nominal value of
paid-up share/
registered capital
BERE/
EMEAZEE

Ordinary US$1,000
LEAR1,000% T

Ordinary US$10,000
@At 10,000% 7T

Ordinary HK$10,000
LA 10,0007 T

Ordinary US$1,000
LER1,000% T

Percentage of
equity
attributable to
the Company
RRE B
REBILL

100

100

100

Principal activities

TEEH

Investment holding
REZER

Provision of
procurement services

RERBERS

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

AHEAMRER K
REB R R

Investment holding
REERK
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Company

AT

Held indirectly: (continued)
HERE: (B)

Topasia Computer Limited

Topsoft Limited

Windsor Enterprises Limited

Advanced Digital Technology

Company Limited

Advanced Digital Technology

Company Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
HEMEL
BN 3

Hong Kong/PRC
B/

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Islands/PRC
EBELEE /T

British Virgin Islands/PRC

RERIHE/THE

Hong Kong/PRC
BE/HH

15.

Nominal value of
paid-up share/
registered capital
BERE/
EMEAZEE

Ordinary HK$10,000
A% 10,0007 T

Ordinary HK$10,000
@A 10,0007 T

Ordinary US$10,000
L®BAZ10,000% T

Ordinary US$1,000

L#R1,000% T

Ordinary HK$2

ERR2ET

Annual Report 2003 % $§

KB AR ZER ()

Percentage of
equity
attributable to
the Company
QA B
REBILL

100

100

100

55

55

Principal activities

TEEH

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

2 HEMARHRE @R
RET MR

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

DB AR E MR
RET R R

Provision of marketing
services

RS ERSE

Investment holding
REERK

Provision of systems
integration services and
software development

REZGEK RS R
IR
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Company

D F

Held indirectly: (continued)

MERE: (&)

tREREBES
AR AR
(note 1)

(FE&E1)

BERHE (EE) ERAR
(note 2)
(F3E2)

B lE SRERRE (L&)
AR
(note 3)
(P 5E3)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
HEMmEL
ERUNE-E 3

PRC
i

PRC
i

PRC
i

15.

Nominal value of
paid-up share/
registered capital
BERE/
EZMEAZEE

Registered capital
US$3,000,000
i E R
3,000,000% 7T

Registered Capital
US$2,000,000
EER IRV
2,000,000% 7T

Registered Capital
US$1,000,000
HAMER
1,000,000% 7&

Percentage of
equity
attributable to
the Company
RRE B
REBILL

55

100

100
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KB AR ZER ()

Principal activities

TEEH

Provision of systems
integration services and
software development

REZGEK RS R
E Rk

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

DB AR E MR
RET R R

Provision of system
integration and
maintenance services

REZGERRFERDE
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

b RSB E S RM AR QA is a wholly-foreign owned
enterprise established by Advanced Digital Technology
Company Limited in the PRC for a period of 15 years
commencing from the date of issuance of its business licence
on 31 October 2000.

WERE (EF) BR2AF is a wholly-foreign owned
enterprise established by Topasia Computer Limited in the
PRC for a period of 20 years commencing from the date of
issuance of its business licence on 29 November 2001.

A= SRR (£8) AR 2 is a wholly-foreign owned
enterprise established by Topasia Computer Limited in the
PRC for a period of 20 years commencing from the date of
issuance of its business licence on 28 January 2002.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results

for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

15.
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KB AR ZER ()
X
1. It REEEBEERMNMERAR AR

# 1 % » f3 Advanced Digital Technology
Company Limited AR B - BT
TE+A=T B ERREL AR
ARt RF

2. BEME (L) BRARRBEIED
¥ ' B Topasia Computer Limitedi
Ky A-FEE—F+—A=+IEH
FEREHBMEF R -_+F-

3. BRELSRERSE (L8) BRAR AR
SNE 1% FATopasia Computer Limited
RHRER B ZTZ_F-A=+N
HE¥XMRELHBHE AP - T5-

EEeRARLRMINZADAME AR
RIBPEARFEEAIBUAREEE
BEERF Z2AR -EFERRREEE
HEARZHESSREBR TR
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GOODWILL 16. BE
As detailed in note 3 to the financial statements, on the AN TS R M RPN E AL U AN A
adoption of SSAP 30, the Group applied the transitional AlE30mM s AEEEAEHBERKER
provision of SSAP 30 that permitted goodwill in respect of B/ BEBECHER T —F—
acquisitions which occurred prior to 1 January 2001 to remain A—RAEWEES 2mENr] RBiRE #
eliminated against consolidated reserves. The amount of BHEE-NR_ZT—F—F—BAIREK
goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves, arising from the BARIMEENREBENGEFEZEENR
acquisition of subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2001, is as HHMT:
follows:
HK$°000
TF¥ET
Cost: A
At beginning of year and REVR-ZET=F
31 December 2003 +=ZA=+—H 43,248
Accumulated impairment: 2IERE:
At beginning of year and REVR-ZET=F
at 31 December 2003 +=ZA=+—H -
Net amount: FE
At 31 December 2002 and 2003 RIBEZ_FR_ZTT=F
+ZA=+—H

43,248
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17.

LONG TERM INVESTMENT

The unlisted long term investment as at 31 December 2002
represented the cost of the Group’s investment in a 19.9%
equity interest in ChinaCast Technology (BVI) Limited (“CCT"),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. CCT is
an Internet access and content provider based in Hong Kong
and the PRC and is principally engaged in the provision of

Internet and related services in the PRC.

During the current year, CCT underwent a group restructuring
to rationalise the structure of the Group of companies
comprising CCT (the “CCT Group”) in preparation for its
proposed listing on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (“SGX"). ChinaCast Communication Holdings Limited
("CCH"), a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability on 20 November 2003, is the listing vehicle of the
CCT Group. In July 2003, the Group paid an additional
US$2,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,600,000) into the CCT
Group pursuant to subscription agreements entered into
between the CCT Group and certain shareholders of the CCT
Group (including the Group). As a result, the Group’s
investment cost in the CCT Group amounted to
HK$66,681,000 as at 31 December 2003 (2002:
HK$51,081,000) and the Group’s holding in CCT Group

remained at 19.9%.

17.

RERE

RZZEZE=-ZF+=-ZA=+—H LWk
H4% & B) A< & @ 7 ChinaCast Technology
(BVI) Limited ([CCTJ) 19.9% kAN #E &8 2
AR CCTRRB RS Mk
BUAEB LR B AR 2 5 AR
ERAHtER FEEPREHREHBHER
RS-

RARFE COREBEENMKESFR S
FT (¥R EHZ HFT]) bz B
HITEBESHA UEBEAKCATSEAA
([CCTEE) 2&EEEB -R_TZ=F
+-AZt+REEREFMAIZ—RA
Al ChinaCast Communication Holdings
Limited ([CCH)ACCTEB Z L AR R
T =F+ A - AEERBCCTEE N
CCREETRR (BREAEE) LR
BT M CCTSE B 85 172,000,0003%
7 (M E 715,600,000 L) R -TET=
FHZA=+—HB XEERCCTEE 2 &
B R 1#66,681,0008 L (Z T T — 4
51,081,000/ 7T) - B AREE AR BCCT
£E19.9% °

On 31 December 2003, CCH submitted its listing application RZTE=F+=-A=+—H CCHAM
to the SGX. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 31 KEBEAZGARILTRB - REEBR
March 2004, CCH lodged its preliminary prospectus dated 31 2 ZEENF=R[=+—H CCHMH M
March 2004 with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. The PHEEREXAANMA_ZTTNE=A

expected listing date of CCH will be in May 2004.

St RHZPERER-FEMCCHZ EH
MERHA-

91



Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERZEBERA T
Annual Report 2003 4 ¥}

Notes to Financial Statements

B % R OR MR

31 December 2003 —ZBE=%+=-A=+—H

92

17. LONG TERM INVESTMENT (continued) 17. R¥KRE @)

The amount due from CCT is further analysed as follows: FEWCCTZ RIBE— T T
Group Company
rEE KAF

2003 2002 2003 2002
—BB2=F _—ITT-F ZBBEZHF _—TIT_F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B &t FHET FHETT FHETT FET

Loans advanced to CCT, BEFCCT2Z
unsecured EEFER () 6,000 8,755 6,000 8,755
Other receivables Hth i i 3K (b) 2,539 3,684 2,408 151
8,539 12,439 8,408 8,906

Notes: B et -

(a) Included in the total balance of loans advanced to CCT, (a) FARET FCCTZERAHE
HK$6,000,000 (2002: HK$6,000,000) is unsecured, interest- 6,000,0007% 7T (=& % =4 :6,000,000
bearing at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus 2% per BT DEER RESEENERINFL
annum. As at 31 December 2002, the remaining balance of 2EFF R -R=ZBEE_F+=-A=+—
approximately HK$2,755,000 was unsecured, interest-bearing H - #8588 492,755,000/ 7T Jh & 3K 3 - 1%
at the PRC bank lending rate and was repaid on 21 January FERITERMEG S BERZET=
2003. The loans are repayable within one month after the F-—AZ+T—HBEE - EREARCITE
listing of the CCT Group on the SGX (2002: repaid on 21 BEEMMEZSFZS5MEME—@EAR
January 2003). BR (ZET_F: R _FF=F—A=

+—BEE)-

(b) The other receivables due from CCT are unsecured, interest- (b) Em R CCTRIE &R 28 WA

NCCTREEMMEERRZX M LETR
—EARNEER (T _F BEEEN
HIR) -

free and are repayable within one month after the listing of
the CCT Group on the SGX (2002: had no fixed terms of
repayment).
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18.

DEPOSITS

During the year, the Group paid an aggregate amount of
HK$15,653,000 (2002: Nil) as deposits in respect of the
Group’s potential investments in a PRC company principally
engaged in provision of portal services in the PRC. The
deposits were secured by a guarantee executed by a third
party as determined by the management. As at 31 December
2003, the relevant financial and legal due diligence works

have been still in progress.

As advised by the Group’s legal advisors, the validity and
legitimacy of the existing corporate structure of the investee
company is unclear and prohibited to foreign investors under
the current prevailing laws and regulations applicable to
foreign investors in the PRC. Having considered the advice
from their legal advisors and in the interest of the Company
and its shareholders, the directors of the Company determined
to terminate the investment project in April 2004. The
proposed investee company agreed to refund the whole
amount of the deposits to the Group no later than 31

December 2004.

18.

B

FN AEERERTPE -—REZRERN
RERHAPIRB 2 AR ZBERE X
44 #£15,653,0008 TiEAZE (Z 2T
ZEE) RERSH RREEEER
REZFEHZERIEER - RZ_ZZT=
F+ZA=+-—"B BUVWBEREARRE
AEMEETR

AEBEZERELD BRETEEARI
B EEZRITENRBRE WERE QA
BRITEERB AR RAEEHERT
BBRILINEREETE-BRERERE
MZBERRAARBEERZEmD AR
RIEFERN —ZZWEFENARELIEZIEAR
BEA -BHELHRBRERARRABER-ZFZ
ME+-—RA=+—HUA BE2EIRSE
BAEE-
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19. INVENTORIES 19. [FE
Group
AEE
2003 2002
i —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Information technology FEEE 2
products held for resale BB E® 13,217 15,989
Work in progress T8 5 7,507 8,956
20,724 24,945
None of the above inventories was carried at net realisable REER Ll FEWIEZRAT SR FEA

value at the balance sheet date (2002: Nil). R(ZZEZEZF:F) -
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20. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE 200 EWRRERERE
An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivable as at REE R KIEEE B B AR E W R E
the balance sheet date, based on invoice date and net of Haz BBRERERRRSTOT

provisions, is as follows:

Group
rEHE
2003 2002
—EE=F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$°000
T TET
Current to 90 days BN EIZ 90K 47,754 20,204
91 days to 180 days 91X E 180K 3,566 13,868
181 days to 365 days 181 R £365K 2,275 11,854
Over 365 days 365K A 15,769 23,196
69,364 69,122
Included in the Group’s accounts receivable is an amount REEZ EWRERERINAEE A @E
due from a related company of the Group, of which certain ARA (KRR —HMWBARIZETEEAR
directors of a subsidiary of the Company are directors, of HE%£)BRIE6,1850008 0 (T —F:
HK$6,185,000 (2002: HK$7,343,000), which is repayable on 7,343,000 0) ' ARAEELRTEME
credit terms similar to those offered to other customers of PZHEOEEBGRRTUER:.

the Group.
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PREPAYMENTS,
RECEIVABLES

DEPOSITS AND OTHER

Included in the Group's prepayments, deposits and other
receivables as at 31 December 2003 is an amount of
HK$12,000,000 (2002: Nil) in respect of deposits paid for an
aborted investment in a company established in the PRC which
is principally engaged in the provision of software and
technical support services for Internet content providers in
the PRC. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, an aggregate
amount of HK$7,500,000 was repaid to the Group up to the
date of issue of these financial statements.

As at 31 December 2003, the aggregate amount of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables includes an
amount of HK$29,554,000 (2002: Nil) of advances to a
business associate to provide for its working capital purposes.
The balances bear interests at the then prevailing bank
borrowing rates in the PRC. Part of the amount of the
advances to the business associate of approximately
HK$25,755,000 (2002: Nil) was financed by the Group’s bank
loans (note 25), which were secured by a pledged bank
deposit and a corporate guarantee of the business associate
amounting to RMB27,000,000 and RMB3,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$25,472,000 and HK$2,830,000), respectively. The
remaining balance of approximately HK$3,799,000 was
subsequently repaid in January 2004.

As at 31 December 2002, the aggregate amount of
prepayments, deposits and other receivables included an
amount of HK$30,000,000, representing the consideration
receivable from several purchasers in connection with the
disposal of the DMX Group. An amount of HK$10,000,000
was set off against the amount payable to a minority
shareholder (note 24) pursuant to an assignment agreement
dated 14 April 2003 and the remaining HK$20,000,000 was

settled by cash during the year.

21.
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BANRE-RERHERRK

RZTEE=F+_A=+—H8B Fr5£EHE
R E e Rk HEMEKREE
12,000, ooo,%srz(f? TFE) ZNE

RERR—REREXK LT EBZRFAF
B0 5 Bt A 70 7 44 T 7 AR R M I BT S IR
fRiE 7 AR Z BHRIERERMIHIRE R
BHEHAR ALEHELSHBRETIE
BE# A& F£ U [E 7,500,000 7T 2 3B

REZTZE=F+-_A=+—H BHNRAE
Re R H b U R 48 78 8 4529,554,000%
T(ZETZF | WIIMEBHEAT
BNUAEEIFEBE SRR BN -%E
AIEE P EBITIRITERFI R B R Z
FMEBBEATIIFzBHRF
25,755,000;‘%%(:%%:??&)EEZN%
BRITER (ME25) BT ZEERUE
B8 AT 9 5 A AR¥27,000,0007T &
A K # 3,000,000 (% 3l 48 & »
25,472,0005% T }2.2,830,0007% 7T.) 2 B K
BRITEAR LA EREERBRBL
3,799,000 THEE R T WF — A&

o

B

il

RZZBE-_F+-A=+—H8 BHRE-:
Re REA R R ERE B E S HEDMXE
[ fE W % & B 75 2 X {830,000,000/% T °
10,000,000 T2 HBEREBRAA-T
TZ=FWA+TNABzEEGEEHEEN D
HREZRE (KM F24) W&k 58
20,000,000 TTERERNUR EIFE-
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22. BERAEEEY
Group Company
TEH bV
2003 2002 2003 2002
—EE-f —TT-F CZBEZF _—TT_F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Cash and bank balance Re RRITEH 57,591 26,653 6,978 341
Time deposits EHTE 50,712 64,002 3,000 15,030
108,303 90,655 9,978 15,371
Less: Pledged time deposits: i : & 3K # € BiF 3
Pledged for bank loans FRTTE FIE R (16,470) (27,649) (3,000) (15,030)
Pledged for bank HIRITEZER
overdrafts - (2,776) - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEED 91,833 60,230 6,978 341
At the balance sheet date, the cash and cash equivalents of REER RNEBUARE (TARKE]) &
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HReREELEEYRS0,161,000/8 T
HK$80,161,000 (2002: HK$55,599,000). The RMB is not freely (=TT =4 55,599,000/ 7T ) - AR
convertible into other currencies, however, under the PRC’s ATERAEBREMER A RiEH B
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of MEE Gl G0 RAEE NEREETEMEE
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange AEBEEESBIETETINEEBL ZRIT
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for BAREHBBEMEN-

other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign

exchange business.
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23. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE
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23. ENRERZE

Group

AEH
2003 2002
—EE=F —ZET=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
o3 FHE T FHE T
Trade and bills payable ERNEZEERER 54,224 24,638
Due to certain minority shareholders [Ef# T L &R ~ 518 (a) 1,452 983
Due to related companies ENEREQNT ZHRIEA (b) 2,739 651
58,415 26,272

Notes: Bt &% -

The amounts due to certain minority shareholders of certain
subsidiaries represent trade payables, which are unsecured,
interest-free and are repayable according to the terms agreed
with these minority shareholders.

The amounts due to related companies, representing trade
payables to certain related companies in which a director of
the Company is also a director, are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

ENTETHEBARE TLBBRREZRK
HEVENE SR i FRRIA TR
B RAREBEEZE LEERGE
ZGRIEE

BN TEBEARZFEINENTFAR
REFNEEEESEZETAMEAR
ZENESRE M FRRETEER.
%8 N Bl BN
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23. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE (continued) 23.

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payable as at the

balance sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows:

ENEREREE (&)

REER KEBEEZANRELEZEMNER

BRERZERE DM

Annual Report 2003 % $§

Group
AEHE
2003 2002
—EE=F —ETCF
HK$°000 HK$000
F#E o FET
Current to 90 days BIEAZE 90K 47,665 14,239
91 days to 180 days 91K £ 180K 1,217 -
181 days to 365 days 181K £365K 1,532 3,220
Over 365 days 365K A E 8,001 8,813
58,415 26,272
24. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 24, Et8ERHMEMSR
Group Company
rEE VN
2003 2002 2003 2002
—EE=F —EEF —EE=fF —EE-F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
K & TET FET FET FET
Accrued and FEEt K
other liabilities EMmaE 71,569 54,373 1,090 1,599
Due to a minority  JEff —%& D
shareholder MR 2 58 (a) 24,708 25,478 - -
Due to another 5 —#
minority LERE 2
shareholder IB (b) - 10,000 - -
96,277 89,851 1,090 1,599
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ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

(continued)

Notes:

Part of the amount due to a minority shareholder of a
subsidiary of approximately HK$13,574,000 (2002:
HK$14,344,000) represents the outstanding purchase
consideration payable for the acquisition of a 55%
shareholding in a subsidiary in 2000 (note 32(a)(ii)). This
balance is unsecured and interest-free and is repayable on
demand.

The remaining balance of approximately HK$11,134,000
(2002: HK$11,134,000) represents an amount advanced from
the minority shareholder to provide for working capital of
this subsidiary. The balance is unsecured, interest-free and is
repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2002, the balance due to another minority

shareholder represented the outstanding purchase
consideration payable for the acquisition of the Group’s initial
51% shareholding in DMX. The balance was unsecured,
interest-free and was set off against the amount receivable
from several purchasers in connection with the disposal of

the DMX Group during the year (note 21).

24.
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EfaEREMENSR @)

B i

BoOEN—FXHBRR —ZPEREZ
FIBH 13,574,000 T (ZET -4
14,344,000 70) * h ZTEETFUIE—
R ERAISS%ME 2 M AL EEER
B (M sE32(a)ii) o LR RE BRI -
BRAERERI -

FREEHI11,134,0008 T (Z BT 4
11,134,000 L) DO HEBREE T Fi%
MEBARMEEEES 2R B -ZREAR
B R ERAREREE

R-EE -+ -_A=+—HENTZR
—EBLEBREAFARBEAEER
DMXZ #2651% B2 REEBER
B-ZBREABERR 28 WERFR
L EDMXEBRRIRZZER N
H (KI&E21) ©
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INTEREST-BEARING AND SECURED BANK 25.
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MERAEMRITER

LOANS
Group
TEH
2003 2002
—EEZ=F —TE-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
T TET
Bank overdrafts, secured RITEL FER - 592
Trust receipt loans repayable BER—FANEBRZE
within one year, secured WEER FEA 4,528 514
Bank loans repayable within AR —FNERZRTT
one year, secured B BEA 34,811 11,887
39,339 12,993

As at 31 December 2003, the Group's banking facilities were
secured as follows:

(i) corporate guarantees executed by the Company to
the extent of HK$20,000,000 (2002: HK$86,000,000);

(ii) the pledge of the Group’s time deposits amounting
to approximately HK$16,470,000 (2002:
HK$27,649,000 ) (note 22);

(iii) a corporate guarantee executed by a business
associate of the Group to the extent of RMB3,000,000
(equivalent to HK$2,830,000) (2002: Nil) (note 21);
and

(iv) the pledge of the time deposits of the Group's
business associate amounting to RMB27,000,000
(equivalent to HK$25,472,000) (2002: Nil) (note 21).

The Group’s bank overdraft facilities amounting to
HK$2,000,000, of which HK$592,000 had been utilised as at
31 December 2002, were secured by the pledge of certain of
the Group’s time deposits amounting to HK$2,776,000
(note 22).

R-BE=F+-A=+—R AEHR
TEEZEMMT:

(i) AN AR H 220,000,000 T (=
TE — £:86,000,000 7T) A FIHE
1R

(ii) AKEBETHEREBLY A
16,470,0008 T (Z &2 & — F:
27,649,000/ 7T) (FMiFE22)

(i) AEE-—BEBHBEATRHZA
R ¥ 3,000,000 (M & »
2,830,000 7)) (ZTZE—F: )
AEER(MEE21) &

(v, AEEEHBHEALTZEHEFERIK
¥ A AR #27,000,0005T (FHE R
25,472,000 7)) (ZETZF &)
(FfEE21) ©

NEEZRITE X BLE FE /2,000,000
T EA592,0008 tER —EE - F+ =
A=+—HB®R YUAEEE TTH’F
AL 2,776,000/ ST EH IR (B 7E22) o
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26. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 26.

The Company and the Group lease a motor vehicle for
business use. This lease is classified as a finance lease and

has remaining lease term of more than two years.

As at 31 December 2003, the total future minimum lease

payments under finance leases were as follows:

Annual Report 2003 % $§

BMEAEEMSTR

ARBRAEEHRE-FHAREBEREZ
mECMEAEN ARMERE  NHHEEH
RMEIA Lo

Group Company
rEH AAT
2003 2002 2003 2002
—BEC=F TE_F Z—BEZHE _—TT_F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE&T FE&T FET
Amounts payable: J& 1~ S00E
Within one year —FR 326 569 326 569
In the second year FF 311 372 311 372
In the third to fifth F-FEFRF
years, inclusive (HEMF
BEEN) 290 522 290 522
Total minimum finance BEAERK
lease payments HemE 927 1,463 927 1,463
Future finance charges KERMEEH (108) (217) (108) (217)
Total net finance lease B & E RN
payables RIBM T 819 1,246 819 1,246
Portion classified as NaRBERE
current liabilities Z#b7 (315) (526) (315) (526)
Long term portion REH S 504 720 504 720
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26. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continued) 26. WMEHEEEMNSIE A
The present value of minimum lease payments under finance MAHEs HEHREE - FoTW
leases is further analysed as follows: T~
Group Company
rEE NN
2003 2002 2003 2002
—BB-f _—TT- —EE=F —TT-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET
Amounts payable: FE AT SRER -
Within one year —FR 315 526 315 526
In the second year BF 277 290 277 290
In the third to fifth E-EERF
years, inclusive (HEEMF
BEEN) 227 430 227 430
Total present value of xEHEEZ
minimum lease payments REMETE 819 1,246 819 1,246
27. DEFERRED TAX 27. EEWHIE
Group
rEH
2003 2002
—EE=F —TEF
HK$'000 HK$°000
T TET
At beginning of year REPOR+=_A=+—H
and 31 December 233 233
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DEFERRED TAX (continued) 27.

SSAP 12 (revised) was adopted during the year, as further
explained in note 2 to the financial statements. There were
no material effects on the Group’s deferred tax assets or
unprovided deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December 2002.
Accordingly, no prior year adjustment is included in the
financial statements. The principal components of the Group’s

deferred tax liabilities represented accelerated depreciation

Annual Report 2003 % $§

IESE B E (4)

RERNRNGTEIE 125 (REFT) - F
HRERMBERRME2E T HE-BR
RO AEENR —_TE_F+-_A=+—
RZRERBEESXARBBERIEREBE
WEEBAZE B ERE B REIELD
EFABAKEZEERBABEEERK
MARMERFTERSR-

allowances.
SHARE CAPITAL 28. WA
Shares Bz 4
2003 2002
—EBC=H —TE_F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Authorised: JETERRAK -
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares BREE0.I10B LY
of HK$0.10 each 3B MK 1,000,000,000 0% 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: E#TREERE:
501,209,644 ordinary shares FREE0E T2 T Mk
of HK$0.10 each 501,209,644% 50,121 50,121

During the year ended 31 December 2002, the movements
in the share capital of the Company, together with the reasons

therefor, were as follows:

(a) On 2 March 2002, 30,769,231 ordinary shares were
issued at a price of HK$0.65 per share to a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary for the settlement of the
first instalment of the outstanding consideration of
HK$20,000,000 in relation to the acquisition of the
Group's initial 51% equity interest in DMX. Further
details of the acquisition are set out in notes 31(a)(iii)

to the financial statements.

RBEZZZE-_F+-_A=+—HLLF
B ADNERAEE) R RESHMNT:

(a) RZEZZF=A=H m—HK
BRAR—RILEBRRBFEIT LT AR
30,769,2310% - G W& 1E{H0.653 7T
LAVE (8 78 B8 Wi 7R 2 B I DMX &)
M5 %R AR M AREEREZ
& 820,000,000 T o B B U 2
EHmFBEHRNYBREKMW
FE31(a)ii)°
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SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

Pursuant to a placing agreement and a subscription
agreement both dated 21 May 2002, the Company,
through an independent placing agent, placed
60,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in
the Company at a price of HK$0.53 per share to
independent third parties. A sum of approximately
HK$30,000,000, net of placement expenses, was

raised and used as working capital of the Group.

On 4 June 2002, the Group entered into an agreement
for the acquisition of an additional 10% shareholding
in DMX from the minority shareholder of the Group
for a consideration of HK$28,080,000, which
generated goodwill of HK$17,716,000. On 19 July
2002, the consideration was fully settled by the
allotment and issue of a total of 49,964,413 shares
of the Company at a price of HK$0.562 per share.
The transaction constituted a connected and share
transaction as defined in the Listing Rules. Further
details of the transaction are included in the

Company'’s circular of 24 June 2002.

In July and August 2002, the Company repurchased
1,524,000 shares of the Company on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at an aggregate
consideration of HK$355,904 with relevant expenses

incurred of HK$5,107.

28.
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B AR ()

(b)

KB AR —_ST_FRA=-+
—AREBAERRBERZE A2
AERS —BURERE ZER
0538 Tz BEMBIE=5E
ARAFEREEI0ETTZ LR
1% 60,000,000/ - - it 55 18 72 1 Bk
fid & & A 1% £ 15 #730,000,000/%5
TCREAKECEEES-

RZTT_FXAMA NEHET
ST 153 0 DAR 28,080,000 T ]
N5 B D 2R R ULEE DMXEE Sh
10% & HE - E £ E17,716,000%
TRZEZE-F+A+NB AR
AR BR0.562/ L 2 B 5 &
174 ££49,964,4130% P10 T 2 2
BERE-ZBEXSEK ETHEA
REZHMERRNR S A E#E—
SHBERARAR_ZTZT_FA
AZ+WHBZERK-

RZZEE_F+ARNA ETQH
REBBAERIMERARIHEEE
B 5 1,524,000 - 2 K B A&
355,904 - AR X B &5,107

Bite
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 28. BA& (&)

(e) A summary of the transactions during the prior year (e) AFRN-BBRLBARAREETYE
with reference to the above movements of the BREAEE 2R G
Company'’s issued ordinary share capital is as follows:

Share
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
ERTROEEE ERITRE 2R E & HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
At 1 January 2002 RZTTZF
—HA—H 362,000,000 36,200 277,121 313,321
Issue of consideration  #1THRIE 1D (a)
shares (a) 30,769,231 3,077 16,923 20,000
Placement of Fid & %7 AR 19 (b)
new shares (b) 60,000,000 6,000 25,800 31,800
Issue of consideration — #1THER ()
shares (c) 49,964,413 4,996 23,084 28,080
Share issue expenses BHETER - - (1,648) (1,648)
140,733,644 14,073 64,159 78,232
Shares repurchased (d) B EEEHG (d) (1,524,000) (152) (209) (361)
At 31 December 2002 RZTZ_FJ
and 2003 —TT=F
+ZA=+—H 501,209,644 50,121 341,071 391,192
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31 December 2003 —EE=%+—-H=+—H

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 12 June 1999 (the “Previous Scheme”), the Company
granted certain options to directors and employees of the
Group, including the executive directors of the Company, to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company subject to the
terms and conditions stipulated therein. In order to comply
with the new requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
on granting options under share option schemes, which took
effect from 1 September 2001, the Previous Scheme was
terminated and a new share option scheme (the “New
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to the ordinary resolutions
passed by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 30 May 2002. Accordingly, no further
options can be granted under the Previous Scheme as from
30 May 2002. However, for the options remaining outstanding
under the Previous Scheme, the existing rights of the grantees

are not affected.

Pursuant to the Previous Scheme, the subscription price is
equal to the higher of the nominal value of the shares of the
Company or 80% of the average of the closing prices per
share of the Company quoted on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the share options. The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options were able to be granted under the Previous
Scheme could not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of

the Company from time to time.

Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Company may grant options
to eligible participants to subscribe for shares in the Company
subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. A
summary of the New Scheme is as follows:

(a) Purpose - To enable the Company to grant options
to Eligible Participants (as defined below)
as incentives and rewards for their

contribution to the Group.

29.
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Bt % %R o& M R

December 2003 —ZT=+=-fA=+—H

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Eligible
Participants

(c) Total number
of shares
available for
issue under
the New
Scheme

(d) Maximum
entitlement of
each Eligible
Participant

(e) Period under
which the
shares must
be taken up
under an

option

(f)  Minimum period
for which
an option must
be held before
it can be
exercised

Being employees or executives or
officers of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries (including their respective
executive and non-executive directors) and
suppliers, consultants and advisers who will

or have provided services to the Group.

The total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the New Scheme
may not exceed 30% of the shares of

the Company in issue.

The total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant may not exceed
1% of the number of shares of the
Company in issued at the date of grant.

The period during which the options may
be exercised is determined by the
board of directors of the Company at its
absolute discretion, save that no option
may be exercised after more than 10 years
from the date of adoption of the New
Scheme, subject to early termination of the

New Scheme.

There is no minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be

exercised.
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31 December 2003 —EE=%+—-H=+—H

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(9) Basis of - The exercise price must be at least the

determining highest of (i) the closing price of the

the exercise shares of the Company as stated in the

price Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of the grant, which must be a
business day; (i) the average of the closing
prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

The New Scheme remains in force until
29 May 2012 unless otherwise terminated
in accordance with the terms stipulated
therein.

(h) Remaining -
life of the
New Scheme

(i) Period within - 28 days from the date of the offer of

which payments/  the options.
calls/loans
must be made/
repaid
() Amount payable - HK$1.00

on acceptance of
the option

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, a total of 1,520,000
share options were exercised in March 2004.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 54,380,000
(2002: 38,296,000) share options outstanding under the share
option scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 54,380,000 (2002:
38,296,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company and
proceeds, before relevant share issue expenses, of
HK$15,198,000 (2002: 21,695,000).

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, a total of 1,520,000
share options were exercised in March 2004.

29.
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December 2003 —ZT=+=-fA=+—H

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the share

option scheme during the year.

Number of share options

EREgE
Granted
during
At the year At
1 January under the Cancelled 31 December
2003 New Scheme during 2003
Grantee R-BEZE REERE theyear R-22=fF
ERA -f-8 it HR REEHE T-AZt-8
DirectorsE =
Mr. Chow Siu Lam, 500,000 - (500,000) -
Cliff
400,000 - (400,000) -
- 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
900,000 5,000,000 (900,000 5,000,000
Mr. W Emmy 3,800,000 - (3,800,000) -
RRALEE
- 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
3,800,000 5,000,000 (3,800,000) 5,000,000

29.

Date of grant
REAH

31 May 2000

5
1A=

I%F
+-8
24 May 2001

“%%-f
RA-TIH
27 Nov 2003

-FE=

—2%Z

t-AZtLH

27 June 2002

—%3C%
~AZTEH
27 Nov 2003

-E3=&

—2%Z

t-A-t4A

BRESS (@
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FA BREFIETHRTREZERE

mF

Share price of

the Company

at grant date ** Exercise period
R Exercise  of share options
* BEERRTH price *** BREZ
o ZRBER TRE fid
HK$2.60 HK$1.82 31 May 2001 to
30 May 2010

260ET 180ET 2%
BA=1-H

32%-%
TA=TH
HK$1.19 HK$0.91 24 May 2002 to
23 May 2011

11987 09157 -
RAZtEA
EZFF
RAE-t=H
HK$0.23 HK$0.233 27 Nov 2003 to
29 May 2012

0.03% T 023331 Z2%=-
t-E=t+A
EIR-CF
EAZthA
HK$0.415 HK$0.431 27 June 2003 to
29 May 2012

041587 04318 T “EEZ
~NRZt4H

E-F-C
EAZthE
HK$0.23 HK$0.233 27 Nov 2003 to
29 May 2012

0.03% T 023331 Z2%=-
+-A-t4A
E_E-CF
RA-tAA



Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEEBER D A

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt % %R o& M R

31 December 2003 —EE=%+—-H=+—H

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Number of share options

BREZE
Granted
during
At the year At
1 January under the Cancelled 31 December
2003 New Scheme during 2003
Grantee R-BE=ZE AEERE theyear R-Z2=f
BRA -A-8 S ERA AEERE t-A=t1-8
DirectorsE %
Mr. Tang Kin Hung 3,800,000 - (3,800,000) -
Hetit
- 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
3,800,000 5,000,000 (3,800,000) 5,000,000
Other employees
iR
In aggregate 3,194,000 - (3,194,000) -
g8
9,082,000 - (9,082,000) -
- 17,720,000 (160,000) 17,560,000
12,276,000 17,720,000 (12,436,000 17,560,000

29.

Date of grant
RiEAH

27 June 2002

B

R

~EZtT+H
27 Nov 2003

%%
t-AZtLH

24 May 2001

-“EE-E

—<%

i}z o]
27 Jun 2002
k& k3

AAZTEA

27 Nov 2003

BRESS (&

Share price of
the Company

at grant date **

RER
* BERLF

o ZBRBER

HK$0.415

0.415% 7

HK$0.23

0.23%57

HK$1.19

11987

HK$0.415

0.415% 7

HK$0.23

0.23%57

Exercise

price ***

il

HK$0.431

0431% T

HK$0.233

0.233%T

HK$0.91

091587

HK$0.431

0431% T

HK$0.233

0.233%T

Annual Report 2003 % $§

Exercise period
of share options
BREZ
G|

27 June 2003 to
29 May 2012

-FE=
-%%=

~BZttR
223k
BAZTAA
27 Nov 2003 to
29 May 2012
ZEECE
t-AZtA
EZ3-CF

BA-tAE

24 May 2002 to
23 May 2011
Z%5C%
RAZTEA
223k
nEZt=H
27 Jun 2003 to
29 May 2012

-FE=
s

~BZttR
F%-C
TAZthA
27 Nov 2003 to
29 May 2012
ZTECF
T-A-t+H
223k

BAZTAA
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. BREFE @

Number of share options

BREHE
Granted
during Share price of
At the year At the Company
1 January under the Cancelled 31 December at grant date ** Exercise period
2003 New Scheme during 2003 REH Exercise  of share options
Grantee R-EE=E REERE theyear R-FEZE Date of grant*  AHAAT price *** BREZ
ERA -f-8 it HR REEHE T-AZt-8 RERE:  ZRGER fTEE Bl
Business Associates
ABBEAL
In aggregate 1,320,000 - - 1,320,000 21 Jan 2000 HK$3.175 HK$2.532 21 Jan 2001 to
L 20 Jan 2010
e 3IT5E T 253231 Z5%-%
-AZt+-8 -AZt-8
E-E-%F
~AZtH
16,200,000 - (15,700,000) 500,000 27 Jun 2002 HK$0.415 HK$0.431 27 Jun 2003 to
29 May 2012
i 3 k3 0415% T 043157 %%z
AAZTEH NAZHEA
EIR-CE
AAZTIA
- 17,400,000 - 17,400,000 27 Nov 2003 HK$0.23 HK$0.233 27 Nov 2003 to
29 May 2012
ZEECE 0357 0.233%71 it
t-A=t+H t-A=t+tA
EIR-CE
AAZTIA
17,520,000 17,400,000 (15,700,000) 19,220,000
Total

2E 38,296,000 50,120,000 (36,636,000 ) 51,780,000
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December 2003 —ZT=+=-fA=+—H

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

*

* K

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
the grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date
of the grant of the share options is the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the trading day
immediately prior to the date of the grant of the options.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s consolidated reserves and
the movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 51 of the financial

statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in 1999 over the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange therefor. Certain goodwill remains
eliminated against consolidated reserves, as detailed

in note 16 to the financial statements.

29.

30.
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30. RESERVES (continued) 30. f#fE (@
(b) Company (b) NN
Share
premium  Contributed Accumulated
account surplus losses Total
R4 8 B HABH 2EEE wnE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it &t FEL FEL FETL FEL
At 1 January 2002 R-ZZ-F—-F—H 277,121 39,431 (107,005) 209,547
Issue of shares BIIRG 28 65,807 - - 65,807
Share issue expenses BmETER 28 (1,648) - - (1,648)
Repurchase of shares BORkG 28 (209) - - (209)
Net loss for the year AEEFEE - - (151,562) (151,562)
At 31 December 2002 R-ZZT-F
and 1 January 2003 TZA=+-8k
—ZZ-F—-f—-H 341,071 39,431 (258,567) 121,935
Net loss for the year KEEFEE - - (51,141) (51,141)
At 31 December 2003 ~ R-ZTT=F
+-A=+—H 341,071 39,431 (309,708) 70,794
The contributed surplus of the Company represents AT ZBABRBKIE LW E
the excess of the combined net asset value of the 30(a)Fir it 7] — T8 & 48 BT KBS M B
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the same AElZEHEEFEREIZR Lt
reorganisation as mentioned in note 30(a) above, over B AT 84T 2 AR ARG EE = b
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in ZEE-REBEARE-NAN—F2Q
exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 A ARABRK TN FOIRBAR
of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed surplus is fho

currently unable to be distributed.
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

31

Bt % %R o& M R

December 2003 —ZT=+=-fA=+—H

STATEMENT

(a)

Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the year, the Group entered into
finance lease arrangements in respect of fixed
assets with a total capital value at the
inception of the leases of HK$260,000 (2002:

HK$899,000).

(ii) Pursuant to an assignment agreement dated
14 April 2003, an amount of HK$10,000,000
of consideration receivable from several
purchasers in connection with the disposal of
the DMX Group (note 21) was set off against
the considerations payable to a minority
shareholder in connection with the Group's

initial acquisition of a 51% equity interest in

the DMX Group (note 24).

(i) On 2 March 2002, the Company issued and
allotted a total of 30,769,231 shares of the
Company at a price of HK$0.65 per share for
a consideration of HK$20,000,000 to settle
the first instalment of the outstanding
consideration of HK$20,000,000 in relation to
the acquisition of a 51% equity interest in

DMX. Further details of which are set out in

note 28(a).

(iv) On 19 July 2002, the Company issued and
allotted a total of 49,964,413 shares of the
Company at a price of HK$0.562 per share to
settle the consideration of HK$28,080,000 in

relation to the acquisition of an additional

10% shareholding in DMX (note 28(c)).

31.
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (continued)

(b) Restricted cash and cash equivalent balances

Certain of the Group’s time deposits are pledged to a
bank to secure a bank overdraft and a bank loan
granted to the Group, as further explained in note

22.

31.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW  31.

STATEMENT (continued)

() Disposal of subsidiaries

Annual Report 2003 % $§

GEBRERERZHE @

(c) HEWEB DA

2003 2002
—EE=F TEZ_F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
o3 FET T
Net assets disposed of: BEELCEEFE:
Fixed assets & E & & - 4,083
Goodwill GRS - 99,377
Inventories rE - 4,469
Accounts receivable, JE U5 BR K- TE A ROE
prepayments and other T2 E A & W R
receivables - 123,783
Pledged time deposits EEAE TR - 14,738
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTAR - 16,134
Accounts payable and JE A BR Sk R At
other accrued liabilities BT E - (27,009)
Tax 1A - (6,740)
Secured bank loan BHEBRITER - (16,399)
Minority interests D BR R = - (44,098)
- 168,338
Loss on disposal of LEMBARZEIE 7
subsidiaries - (119,363)
- 48,975
Satisfied by: AR
Cash consideration received B W & EUIE < R E
and receivable - 50,000
less: Legal expenses paid WoBmEE IR
incidental to EEERA
the disposal - (1,025)

48,975
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 31. HREABEHRERZHE (&)
STATEMENT (continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued) (c) HEMB AR (&)
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash EREEMNBRARZEERRESE
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries BYzREeRE FEINOT:
is as follows:
2003 2002
—EEC=F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$°000
TET TET

Cash consideration received U [ fE Y 38 4 R (B

and receivable - 50,000
118 Cash consideration not yet & R E 2 38 & K& (K zE21)
received (note 21) - (30,000)
Offset with payable in HEF AR E 2T

relation to the acquisition W R EAR
of the subsidiaries

in the prior year - (10,000)
Cash and bank balances EHEZREe RIBITER

disposed of - (16,134)
Legal expenses paid REHEINZ2EEER

incidental to the disposal - (1,025)

Net outflow of cash and HEHBRAABRZEER
cash equivalents in ReEEMRLFE

respect of the disposal

of subsidiaries - (7,159)
The results of the subsidiaries disposed of during the HE-_ZT_F+=-A=+—H
year ended 31 December 2002 contributed HFEELZMBARZEE 55l
HK$155,289,000 to turnover and a profit of AERE-_TT_F+-_A=+—
HK$18,457,000 to the consolidated loss after tax and HIE % E & ¥ 7% % 155,289,000
before minority interests for the year ended 31 BT R RRTBEER BRI

December 2002. SRR A BT 2K A ) 18,457,000

o
f
BIre
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31 December 2003 —EZT=+-HA=+—8H
COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments

The Group had no capital commitments as at 31

December 2003. As at 31 December 2002, the Group

had the following capital commitments:

(if)

As at 31 December 2002, the Group was
committed to make a capital injection to a
subsidiary in the PRC of approximately
HK$12,472,629.

In 2000, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “S&P Agreement”)
with an independent third party (the “Seller”)
for the acquisition of a 55% shareholding in
a subsidiary (the “Subsidiary”) for a total
consideration of HK$36,750,000, of which
HK$23,176,000 (2002: HK$23,176,000) has

been settled up to the balance sheet date.

32.

S

(a)
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32. COMMITMENTS (continued) 32. A¥E

Annual Report 2003 % $§

(a) Capital commitments (continued) (a) BARARE (&)

In addition, pursuant to the S&P Agreement,
the Seller was entitled to additional

consideration calculated as follows:

(1) The first additional consideration was
calculated by multiplying
HK$6,200,000 by the quotient of the
audited profit after tax of the
Subsidiary for the first 12 months
following its acquisition by the Group

and HK$15,000,000.

120

During the year ended 31 December
2001, the first additional consideration
to the Seller was quantified to be
HK$2,500,000 and the amount was
settled in cash during the year ended

31 December 2002.
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COMMITMENTS (continued)

(a)

Capital commitments (continued)

2)

The second additional consideration
was calculated by multiplying
HK$11,170,000 by the quotient of the
audited profit after tax of the
Subsidiary for the second 12 months
following its acquisition by the Group

and HK$27,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December

2002, the second additional
consideration to the Seller was
quantified to be HK$3,200,000 and
the amount has been fully settled in

cash during that year.

The third additional consideration was
to be calculated by multiplying
HK$14,080,000 by the quotient of the
audited profit after tax of the
Subsidiary for the third 12 months
following its acquisition by the Group
and HK$34,000,000. Based on a
confirmation from the minority
shareholder, the Group is not required
third

to pay the additional

consideration.

32.

AIE (E)

(a)

BEAREE (B

2)
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A NNV N
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32. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments (continued)

Half of the additional consideration was able
to be satisfied either by way of cash, or by
the allotment and issue of the equivalent value
of shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of
the Company, at the option of the Group,
with reference to the closing prices of the
Company’s shares as quoted on The Stock
Exchange on the relevant dates of the
payments. Pursuant to the S&P Agreement,
the number of shares to be allotted and issued
to the Seller was not equal to or exceed 9.9%
of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time, or otherwise the
consideration shall be paid in cash. Further
details of the transaction and the adjustment
basis of the additional consideration were set
out in the Company’s circular to the

shareholders dated 15 August 2000.

Operating lease arrangements

The Group leases certain of its office premises under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for office
premises are negotiated for terms ranging from one
to five years. The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to

the then prevailing market conditions.

Annual Report 2003 % $§

32. A¥E

(a)

(b)

ExEE (E)
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COMMITMENTS (continued) 32. EIE @)
(b) Operating lease arrangements (continued) (b) rERERH (&)
At 31 December 2003, the Company and the Group RZEE=F+=ZA=+—H0"18
had total future minimum lease payments under non- BAEBE T REFHTIRIELEE
cancellable operating leases in respect of land and ML XARRASBEELT B
buildings falling due as follows: HENREZEESLBEOT:
Group Company
rEE NN
2003 2002 2003 2002
—EE=F —TT-HF CZBE=ZF —TT-F
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET FET FET
Within one year —F RN 2,466 2,483 458 1,007
In the second to fifth years, FE_EFHF
inclusive (HEEMF
BEEA) 503 1,268 - 740
2,969 3,751 458 1,747

Save as aforesaid, the Company and the Group did not have

any other significant commitments as at 31 December 2003.

BEXFEIN ARRARAEER-F
T=F+-_A=+—HEETWEMEX

Ao
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 33. HAREE
At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided REER ARBBERERPBEECSIARE
for in the financial statements were as follows: &
Group Company
NEE AAT
2003 2002 2003 2002
—B2=F —ZTT_F CZBEZF _—TT_F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Guarantees given to banks in Fhi% ¥ %& T i B
connection with banking 2~ 8] EDMX
facilities granted to certain  (EFEHE*) 2
subsidiaries and to DMX WITER M4 T
(disposed of during RITZER
the prior year*) - 60,000 20,000 86,000
- 60,000 20,000 86,000

* The Group provided guarantees of HK$60,000,000 to a bank
for banking facilities granted to the DMX Group, a subgroup
of the Group which was disposed of during the year ended
31 December 2002. As at 31 December 2002, an aggregate
amount of HK$4,815,000 of the banking facilities granted
to DMX was utilised. The guarantee was terminated on 24
February 2003.

As at 31 December 2003, the banking facilities granted to
the subsidiaries were utilised to the extent of approximately
HK$4,528,000 (2002: HK$1,106,000).

REEREFREE-_TT_F+_A
=+ —BIEFERHEREEETDMX
EECRATERBLT KRBT
60,000,000 THER - R =_F+
—A=+—H DMXE & A EZIETT
B A 4,815,000/ 7T o X E R =
EE=F_A-+MWBAKIE-

P

R-ZEZE=F+-_RA=+—H HEBA
e AMERRITEREN
4,528,000 7L (= FF =% :1,106,000
BT °
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group had a contingent liability in respect of possible
future long service payments to employees under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance, with a maximum possible
amount of HK$890,000 (2002: HK$553,000) as at 31
December 2003, as further explained in note 3 to the financial
statements. The contingent liability has arisen as a number
of current employees have achieved the required number of
years of service to the Group, to the balance sheet date, in
order to be eligible for long service payments under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance if their employment is
terminated under certain circumstances. A provision has not
been recognised in respect of such possible payments, as it is
not considered probable that the situation will result in a

material future outflow of resources from the Group.

33.
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HZAREE (&)

W ISR R M 3 — S B REER =
TEE=F+-_A=+—BREFERER
PIgtAEAIREEMEE XN RBRE S
BRAAE AL ES90,0008 T (ZF
T % :553,0008 ) A AREE AR
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SENFEHEEEEERBEGRAMIBESF
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BRTAEERALEEDERERKLRSE
KRR B AR Bh % AT RE S H W R B4 o

125



Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERZEBERA T

Annual Report 2003 % $§

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M &

31 December 2003 —EE=%+—-H=+—H

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 34. EFBEAIXERBERS
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed in elsewhere in the financial B BERREMITOAEEEIN RAF
statements, the Group had the following transactions with EASEEABEEATREAEALTELT
related parties and connected persons during the year: AT 5:
2003 2002
—EEC=F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$°000
TET TET
Purchases of information A PATS 2 B RS & AR R T A an
technology products from:
Related companies BEAENT
126 — a company in which —ARRRMBRE—F
- a director of EEHAEnER AR
a subsidiary of the
Company has
a beneficial interest - 81
— a company in which —ARREIMBAR—BES
a director of FEEZZ22AA
a subsidiary of the
Company is also
a director 416 1,016
— a company in which —ARR—RBEFFME
a director of the S a/NC]
Company is also
a director 1,361 -
Sales of information MATRARHEEMNRMNE®:
technology products to:
— a company in which —ARAR—MBRARZES
directors of FEESFZAA
a subsidiary of the
Company are also
directors - 4,553
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

34.

Annual Report 2003 % $§

EREALIRZRBERS (&)

2003 2002
—EE=F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$°000
TET TET
Rental income received from: B A T & 5 WEH G YA :
— a company in which —ARRAIMB AR —RESHAR
a director of EmEn s DA
a subsidiary of the
Company has a
beneficial interest - 171
Advance to an investee HWRERA 23K
company (note 17) (FF&E17) 8,539 12,439
Corporate guarantee METEABEHEREEET
provided to a banker for DMX % & 7 $R 47 B 3X M &)
banking facilities granted —HKRITREN R BER
to the DMX Group, (P &£33)
a subgroup of the
Group which was disposed
of during the year (note 33) - 60,000
Proceeds on sale of HEBTETEEMSRERS:
fixed assets received from:
— a company in which —RDBEBFHML
directors of the - = A/N]
Company are
also directors 100 -
Maintenance and ENRERBEMERT:
consultancy fees paid to:
— a company in which —ARNB—REEFRMAE
a director of the AN
Company is also
a director 2,123 -
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34.

35.

36.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

In the opinion of the directors, the above related party
transactions were entered into by the Group in the ordinary
course of business and on terms agreed with the minority
shareholders and related companies. The directors consider
that these transactions were made according to prices and

conditions similar to those offered to other third parties.

Details of the terms of the outstanding balances with related
parties and minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries at
31 December 2003 are set out in notes 20, 21, 23 and 24 to

the financial statements.
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, in January 2004, the
Group further advanced to its investee companies (note 17)
an aggregate amount of RMB25,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$24,057,000) for their working capital purpose before its
proposed listing on the SGX. The balances bore interests at
the then prevailing bank borrowing rates in the PRC and
were financed by the Group’s bank loans drawn down in
January 2004, which were secured by a pledged bank deposit
of the investee companies amounting to US$3,300,000

(equivalent to HK$25,740,000).

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 28 April 2004.

34.

35.

36.
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